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DDM Consultants
22357 Columbia Street
Dearborn, MI 48124-3431
313-277-5095
1 January 2013

VIA FEDEX AIRBILL 8007-9341-5951

Mr. David L. Strickland, Administrator
NHTSA Headquarters
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
Washington, DC 20590
202-366-4000
Subject:

Chrysler Group, LLC Failure-to-Warn/Comply under 49 CFR § 573.6, et al.

Reference 1:
Reference 2:

Toyota Motor Corporation/NHTSA Recall 12V-305 (Public Memo)
EA12-005 File Update (Chrysler Jeep Fuel Tank System Safety Defect)

1

Dear Mr. Strickland:
Reference 1 affirms that agreement to selected historical facts has occurred between the parties. The memo
emphasizes that “a trend” was detected by the Office of Defects Investigation (ODI) by use of Vehicle Owner
Questionnaires (VOQ). Reportedly this alerted the agency to the possible existence of a safety defect involving
floor mats. Reference 1 does not qualify or quantify the associated product liability litigation activity/behavior.
And nowhere does the memo present the injury/death statistics caused by the alleged Toyota safety defect. 2 3
Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (FMVSS) : Comparative Analysis and Discussion
To the best of my knowledge, no FMVSS is directed specifically at floor mats; such a narrow specification is not
necessary given the overriding philosophical and regulatory intentions of the National Traffic and Motor Vehicle
Safety Act. Likewise, no FMVSS is narrowly directed at the issues germane to EA12-005, specifically:
The intrinsic and foreseeable safety defect of an engineering design that allows for direct collision impact/breach
to an unprotected fuel tank system and/or its components. (ATTACHMENT 1) 4 5
The agreement reached between Toyota and NHTSA/DOT portends maximizing the awareness and safety of the
public. In this context I am compelled to update EA12-005 with comparative analysis and discussion.
Jeep Vehicle Fire Death/Injury “Trends” Since Not Later Than 1997: Documentation and Events Review
It was known to NHTSA that a trend emerged for severe fire injury and fire death in the Jeep vehicles; one that did
not exist in peer vehicles; a trend that was quantitatively and qualitatively far more lethal than what allegedly
justified Toyota/NHTSA Recall 12V-305. Historical data indicated that EA12-005 defects had caused 69 deaths
within the 1993-1998 ZJ-Body and within the 1999-2004 WJ-Body Jeep Grand Cherokees data bases alone. 6
NHTSA was also fully aware that the trend for Jeep Grand Cherokees became non-existent beginning with the 2005
WK-Body; with extensive design input from DaimlerBenz, the WK-Body addressed all failure modes that are
known to exist in the defectively designed fuel tank system of the prior Chrysler Jeep Grand Cherokee. 7
Review of the following five documents/events confirms that Chrysler Group LLC was fully aware that a severe
injury and death trend had emerged, but also that they had foreknowledge that such was foreseeable. Despite these
historical facts, spanning over fifteen years, Chrysler failed to warn NHTSA, in clear violation of 49 CFR § 573.6.
Further, as I had made you personally aware, they actively sought to conceal internal documentation; a behavior not
limited to litigation, but one that confirms that their failure to warn was deliberate.
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I. Document: Original Defect Petition of 2 October 2009 - DP09-005
The original defect petition submitted to NHTSA on 2Oct09 by the Center for Auto Safety (CAS) provides
overwhelming evidence that Chrysler was aware of an existing defect trend in their 1993-2004 Jeep Grand
Cherokees. The following salient observations can be made from the CAS petition:
1.

Accidents where the Most Harmful Event (MHE) indicated collision-induced fuel tank related fires
were known to Chrysler and NHTSA not later than 1997,

2.

Accidents where the MHE resulted from a rear collision-induced fuel tank fire were known to Chrysler
by virtue of the fact that such had occurred in Michigan,

3.

A majority of the accidents mentioned above, where litigation was commenced, involved not only a
safety defect assertion by the plaintiff, but also a “failure to warn” complaint,

4.

ALL known litigation mentioned in #3 concluded with Chrysler demanding a “Confidentiality Order.”
This fact is called out in the petitioner’s cover letter, but most prominently under his Attachment E. 8

A scar in the history of transportation safety, an open assault upon the philosophical intent of the Safety Act, is the
dynamic orchestrated by the corporate defense bar under the portent of #4 above: The obscuration of public and
Agency knowledge/awareness of a safety defect.
II.

Event and Documents: Compliance Status Revision of ZJ-Body - The “Estes Bracket”

FMVSS-301 compliance status of the 1993-1996 ZJ-Body remains highly questionable if not fraudulent. In my
letter of 27 August 2012 (Page 5 of 7) I advised you to request from Chrysler Group LLC “the transcript and
exhibits to the deposition of Mr. Judson Estes in Austin v DaimlerChrysler.” The following salient observation can
be made from those documents:
1. Chrysler expects the agency to believe that a minor change to a fuel tank was approved; a change they
allege was proposed by a supplier to reduce cost. They expect us to believe that this revision alone caused
recertification to FMVSS-301. Legal discovery shows that, at best, FMVSS-301 compliance of the 1993 – 1996
ZJ-Body was/is so incompetent, so marginal, that when certification of essentially a carryover design was
attempted, Chrysler was confronted with the likelihood of a non-compliance status for prior sales and existing
production. Although no field action was offered, these internal developments had resulted in the unexpected
expenditure of hundreds-of-thousands in additional crash testing dollars for the 1997 model year; which then
resulted in the last-minute production release a preposterous, make-shift reinforcement to the left rear frame rail,
nicknamed the “Estes bracket” (ATTACHMENT 2). Please take the time to read Endnote 9. 9
This history should be viewed in the context of Chrysler foreknowledge that, beyond narrow FMVSS-301
compliance, the ZJ-Body fuel system had serious real-world issues that would and did provoke a defect trend.
III. Documents & Event: Compliance Status Revision of WJ-Body - Safety Defect Recall A-10
In my letter to CAS of 1 June 2010, which was copied to you, 10 I discussed the WJ-Body recall for, what was,
once again, a marginal FMVSS-301 compliance status. I made the following assertion:
“What remains significant about this document is that it represents the first time that three key words were used
connectedly and simultaneously with respect to the Jeep Grand Cherokee: ‘safety,’ ‘skid plate,’ ‘repaired.’
Although the underlying portent is well-understood internally to Chrysler and its dealers, Safety Recall A10
represented the first admission that Grand Cherokee fuel tank safety/crashworthiness issues could be “repaired”
by existence or installation of a skid plate.”
Alternatively, installation of a “protective impact deflection structure” (i.e. “skid plate”) resolved not only a
narrow non-compliance status, but also the real-world issue of crashworthiness. As you will see in the next section,
an existing internal recommendation for a protective structure had already addressed the FEMAs for the fuel
systems of the EA12-005 vehicles. These failure modes are implicit to the defect trend in FARS for the Jeep Grand
Cherokee. Chrysler Group LLC has been aware of these non-regulated failure modes since not-later than 1978.
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IV. Document: Failure to Warn NHTSA: The (Chrysler) Baker “Fuel System Design” Memorandum of 1978
During our face-to-face introduction on 19 May 2010, at the Toyota hearings in the Senate Russell Office Building,
I alerted you to the existence of a document that was relevant and responsive to DP09-005. 11 In secret, in prior
lawsuits, and upon plaintiffs’ capitulation to Chrysler demands for Confidentiality Orders, the 1978 Baker memo
was vigorously obscured from public view. In response to your verbal request to receive the Baker memo, I copied
you on my 1 June 2010 letter to CAS. 12 In that letter I quoted the Baker memo:
“Where fuel tank location behind the rear axle is all that is feasible, a protective impact deflection structure may
have to be provided whether or not a bumper is provided. An investigation whether to relocate the fuel tank or to
provide impact deflecting structures is presently underway.” (underline added)
The Baker memo confirms a long-standing foreknowledge of the fact that EA12-005 vehicles, which do not have a
“protective impact deflection structure,” will provoke a defect trend that will cause horrific injury and death:
1.
2.
3.
4.

On 21 August 2000, Mr. Leonard L. Baker was deposed in the litigation of Butler v DaimlerChrysler
wherein his memo of 24 August 1978 was examined,
On 29 September 2005 Mr. Baker was once-again deposed regarding his memo, this time in the Jeep
Grand Cherokee fire death case of Austin v DaimlerChrysler,
On 29 May 2003 Chrysler defense expert Mr. Robert Banta was deposed in the ZJ-Body death case of
Austin v DaimlerChrysler wherein extensive examination of the Baker memo took place,
Both litigations concluded with the obscuration of the existence and content of the Baker memo.

Chrysler Group LLC failed to submit the Baker memo under their obligations to DP09-005 and PE10-031. That I
was burdened with its submission to NHTSA affirms that Chrysler actively sought to conceal documentation; a
behavior that confirms that their failure to warn was deliberate. (ATTACHMENT 3). 13
V. Documents & Event: Failure to Warn NHTSA - Chrysler Defense Expert Testimony “The tank’s on its own.”
My letter of 24Sep2012 reviews the testimony of the highly qualified Chrysler defense expert Mr. Robert Banta.
Referencing photographs that I had forwarded to you on 27Jul2012, Mr. Banta testified (ATTACHMENT 4):
Question:
Now, in looking at that photo, can you tell me what part of the vehicle protects the part of the tank
that we’re looking at in that photograph?
Witness:
No. It’s covered by the fascia.
Question:
So if a vehicle were to strike just that yellow piece of the car, whether it be because it’s lower or
some kind of vehicle that’s not even a car, let’s say it was a recreational vehicle of some sort, what
would protect that portion of the tank that we see here in yellow.
Witness:
Just the tank surface itself.
Question:
So in other words, whatever the material of the tank is at the time?
Witness:
The tank’s on its own.
Chrysler Group LLC has not alerted NHTSA of this testimony of 7Sep2012. The record now confirms that their
own experts agree that the Jeep fuel tank systems identified by EA12-005 only comply with the narrow specifics of
FMVSS-301, but cannot protect occupants and bystanders from fire-injury and fire-death in the real-world. 14
Comments Submission to Reference 1 (Toyota/NHTSA Recall 12V-305)
(1)
At no time have Toyota executives, defense lawyers or experts involved with Recall 12V-305 offered a
paraphrasing of the above Chrysler defense expert testimony, such as: “The floor mat’s on its own.”
(2)
At no time have Toyota executives or their defense lawyers involved with Recall 12V-305, or any other
safety investigation, sought to engage NHTSA and the Department of Justice (DOJ) in a criminal tripartite effort to
obscure critical safety information from the taxpayer. 15
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Conclusion Background
This submission offers a ‘comparative analysis and discussion’ between Recall 12V-305 and EA12-005. The
former has resulted in a 17.5 million-dollar maximum civil penalty; a first in the history of the Safety Act. During
the timeframe when NHTSA was formulating that penalty, the following EA12-005 event occurred:
In early 2012, while NHTSA was detecting “a trend” in Toyota floor
mats, I copied you on my letter of 11 April 2012 wherein I declare:
“The details of the fire-death on 6 March 2012 of Remington are too
horrific to document.” 16 Four-year-old Remington Cole Walden
(pictured at left) burned to death in a Jeep Grand Cherokee. Although he
and his aunt both survived the low-speed rear collision, and his aunt was
able to escape through the open driver’s side window, the fuel-fed
flames that instantly engulfed the Jeep were too intense to save
Remington, secured in the rear seat. The aunt and neighbors all watched
in horror and helplessness as Remington burned to death in a vehicle that
Chrysler notoriously claims “has an excellent safety record.”
You and Secretary LaHood received a letter from Mr. Thomas Kline on
31 August 2010. You and Secretary LaHood are aware that Mrs. Kline,
wife and mother of two, burned to death on 24 February 2007 in a Jeep
Grand Cherokee. You are both in possession of the attachments to the
Kline letter, including the autopsy report which documents the lethality
of the defective Jeep Grand Cherokee fuel system; a lethality that has
taken the lives of 69 American citizens (ATTACHMENT 5). You are in
possession of my letter to you of 2Sep2012, which included an eyewitness report that recounts the final moment of
Mrs. Kline’s life (ATTACHMENT 6).
Conclusion: A Long-known “trend” that was not reported and is not survivable
In the NHTSA press release of 18 December 2012 for Toyota Recall 12V-305 you state (ATTACHMENT 7):
“It is critical to the safety of the driving public that manufacturers report safety defects in a timely manner. Every
moment of delay has the potential to lead to deaths or injuries on our nation’s highways.”
I agree with you (and Secretary LaHood). But you must recognize that, in the case of Toyota floor mats, the vast
majority of the VOQ database originated with citizens that had survived the defect. In the case of EA12-005, “the
trend” was established by those who did not survive the defect.
Let us be frank, that in the context of Agency notification requirements, there is no comparison between the
historical lethality of 12V-305 and that of EA12-005. It would not be unreasonable for some to allege that Recall
12V-305 was motivated by bias. Given the ‘Documentation and Events’ section above, which is preliminary, I
recommend that the Agency formulate EA12-005 actions that obviate any such allegation(s).
Please do not hesitate to contact me at any time.
Respectfully,

Paul V Sheridan
Attachments
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ENDNOTES
1

Available with active hyperlinks here: http://links.veronicachapman.com/Sheridan2Strickland-9.pdf

2

Available reports indicate the unfortunate death of one individual which was allegedly caused by the floor mat entrapment
defect. Reference 1, the signed NHTSA/Toyota agreement is available here:
http://www.nhtsa.gov/staticfiles/administration/pdf/NHTSA-Toyota-agreement.pdf
3

You were a courtesy copy recipient of my letter of 11 April 2012. That letter, addressed to National Automobile Dealers
Association (NADA) Chairman David Kelleher, made no request of the Agency in the plain direct sense; yet this is the only
letter of ten that provoked response. I received a one-page letter from NHTSA dated 26Apr2012 which states:
“We do not have the authority to act on isolated problems or resolve disputes between individual owners,
dealers or manufacturers.”

Any credible/integrated reading of my letter to Mr. Kelleher would conclude that no such request, of the kind insinuated by the
quote above, was made. The NHTSA letter concludes with:
“The information you provided has been entered into our database. It will be considered with future reports
to identify any future safety defect trends that may require our attention.”
Any credible/integrated and sincere reading of my letter would conclude that the past had already demonstrated that a “safety
defect trend” existed. My Conclusion section contains a request that is very plainly directed at the NADA.
However, with content very similar to the ‘Conclusion Background’ section above, my letter to Mr. Kelleher also contained a
section entitled, The Horrific Fire Death of Four-Year-Old Remington Cole Walden (1999 Jeep Grand Cherokee).
Presumably this data remains worthy of NHTSA attention.
My letter to NADA of 11Apr2012 is available here: http://links.veronicachapman.com/Sheridan2Kelleher-1.pdf As of this
letter Mr. Kelleher has not responded.
The NHTSA response letter of 26Apr2012 is available here: http://links.veronicachapman.com/NHTSA2Sheridan-trend.pdf
4

Please see my letter to you of 27 July 2012; available here: http://links.veronicachapman.com/Sheridan2Strickland-5.pdf

5

Please see my letter to you of 27 August 2012, Page 2 of 7, first paragraph; available here:
http://links.veronicachapman.com/Sheridan2Strickland-6.pdf
6

EA12-005 was extended to also include the 1993-2001 XJ-Body Jeep Cherokee and the 2001- 2007 KJ-Body Jeep Liberty
models, which have a similar fuel system design problem to that of the ZJ/WJ-Body (fuel tank located behind the rear axle and
unprotected from direct collision impact on standard equipment models, but with a different fuel filler hose arrangement, etc.).
These additional model lines should not be statistically agglomerated with the ZJ/WJ, but as separate and distinct, especially at
the level of their respective FEMAs (e.g. the KJ-Body does not have the same fuel tank filler hose FMEA as the ZJ-Body, etc.).
7

A majority of the engineering design and a great number of core components of the 2005 WK-Body were provided by the
Daimler-Benz engineers during the DaimlerChrysler era; a fact openly touted in Jeep advertisements and press releases.
Contrary to the diversions provided to the media by Chrysler Group LLC, the dramatic improvement in the safety of
the fuel tank system of the WK-Body (to that of a ‘no defect’ status versus the ZJ/WJ-Body) had no technical relation to
the ruse about “luggage space.” In litigation and under a competent/complete EA12-005, Chrysler and dealership defense
lawyers, their defense experts, and NHTSA will be hard-pressed to explain how the inclusion of a 3/16” plate steel fuel tank
encapsulation, as standard safety equipment in the WK-Body, has any design correlation whatsoever to “luggage space.”
Although Toyota was asked to comment under PE10-031, the fact that NHTSA/ODI failed to solicit comments from
DaimlerBenz on the WK-Body and their fuel system engineering design concepts remains egregious. Please see my letter to
you of 9Feb2011, Concern 3, on page 4 of 5, available here: http://links.veronicachapman.com/Sheridan2Strickland-1.pdf
8

The Center for Auto Safety petition is available here:
http://www.autosafety.org/sites/default/files/JeepGrandCherokeeDefectPetition%282%29.pdf
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ENDNOTES CONTINUED
9

An expert in the litigation of Kline v Loman’s Auto Group et al. has testified, based on Chrysler documentation, that the
1993 – 1996 ZJ-Body compliance for FMVSS-301 is invalid. Years prior to this testimony/report I directed the Kline plaintiff
to confront Chrysler Group LLC discovery defense counsel (Miller, Canfield, Paddock & Stone PLC) with the “rear frame rail
reinforcement bracket” issue. At first, their lead discovery counselor (M. Sheila Jeffrey) feigned complete ignorance of the
question/issue. This is incredulous given that during two full days (26/27 May 2005), in the Jeep Grand Cherokee fire death
case of Austin v DaimlerChrysler, the deposition of Mr. Estes had taken place at the law offices of Miller, Canfield, Paddock &
Stone PLC. The focus of that two-day deposition, attended by the Chrysler Office of the General Counsel: Recertification of
the ZJ-Body for FMVSS-301 by use of the “Estes Bracket.” Later, through the plaintiff, I confronted that same discovery
counsel/firm with photographs of the “Estes Bracket,” as well as the Mopar service part number (52059128AA). At this point
defense counsel was forced to acknowledge prior knowledge of the “Estes Bracket” issue. Curiously, immediately following
this death case discovery charade, Mopar service part number 52059128AA disappeared from the DirectConnect data base
under the guise that the part was suddenly “obsolete.”
However, that obsolescence ploy was merely the attempted endpoint. During the time that the “Estes Bracket” was available
for service, the Mopar DirectConnect database was misleading the public; declaring that the official purpose of this left rear
frame rail reinforcement bracket was not related to ZJ-Body recertification under FMVSS-301, but was listed as a “tail hook.”
Please review the last two pages of Attachment 2; where you will plainly see that the “Estes Bracket” hooks nothing.
The deposition of plaintiff’s expert is available here: http://links.veronicachapman.com/Hannemann-29Jun12.pdf
The first day of the deposition of Mr. Estes is available here:
http://links.veronicachapman.com/DepofJUDSONB.ESTES5-26-2005AustinvDCC.doc
The second day of the deposition of Mr. Estes is available here:
http://links.veronicachapman.com/DepofJUDSONB.ESTES5-27-2005AustinvDCC.doc

If, while I functioned as an Engineering Programs Manager at Chrysler Jeep-Truck Engineering (JTE), an engineer had
proposed (for a safety issue and for regular production) the engineering equivalent of something as utterly ludicrous as the
“Estes bracket” band aid, I would have proposed retraining and/or unemployment for that engineer.
10

Available here: http://links.veronicachapman.com/Sheridan2Ditlow-1.pdf

11

DP09-005 is available here: http://wwwodi.nhtsa.dot.gov/cars/problems/defect/results.cfm?action_number=DP09005&SearchType=QuickSearch&summary=true
12

Available here: http://links.veronicachapman.com/Sheridan2Ditlow-1.pdf Upon conclusion of the Senate hearing (on
Toyota) of 19 May 2010, I had a twenty-minute one-on-one meeting with Senator Jay Rockefeller (and his senior staff Jocelyn
Moore?). The senator was especially concerned with my discussion of how my office files had been raided and confiscated,
including my crashworthiness and FMVSS-301 files, during the Christmas holidays of 1994. I had shared this RockefellerSheridan discussion content via 20 May 2010 email with Mr. Clarence Ditlow, Director at the Center for Auto Safety.

13

Chrysler submissions as late as 13Dec2012, which continue to divert the Agency and the media/public with the notion
that “location” is the central complaint of the Petitioner and the current plaintiffs should be shunned as a defense lawyer
ruse. It should be emphasized that in August 1978 Chrysler Engineering recognized that although fuel tank location plays
a role, the PRIMARY factor in fuel system crashworthiness is protection or, as Mr. Baker specified, use of a “protective
impact deflection structure.” Beginning with the WK-Body the Daimler engineers not only relocated the fuel tank to a midvehicle location (within and above structural elements, i.e. not exposed to direct collision impact), but also added a “protective
impact deflection structure” as standard (i.e. regardless of the on or off-road intentions of the user).
Although Toyota was asked to comment under PE10-031, the fact that NHTSA/ODI failed to solicit comments from
DaimlerBenz on the WK-Body and their fuel system engineering design concepts remains egregious. Please see my letter to
you of 9Feb2011, Concern 3, on page 4 of 5, available here: http://links.veronicachapman.com/Sheridan2Strickland-1.pdf
14

My letter to you of 24 September 2012 is available here: http://links.veronicachapman.com/Sheridan2Strickland-8.pdf

15

Please see my letter to you of 9Feb2011, beginning with Enclosure 1, PDF page 24 of 245, entitled “Colored Tab,”
available here: http://links.veronicachapman.com/Sheridan2Strickland-1.pdf

16

See Page Three of Three, letter to Mr. David Kelleher, Chairman of the National Automobile Dealer’s Association (NADA),
dated 11 April 2012, available here: http://links.veronicachapman.com/Sheridan2Kelleher-1.pdf (large file).

ATTACHMENT 1
Mr. David L. Strickland
Administrator
NHTSA Headquarters
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
Washington, DC 20590
202-366-4000
1 January 2013

Subject: Chrysler Group, LLC Failure-to-Warn/Comply under 49 CFR § 573.6, et al.
Reference 1: Toyota Motor Corporation/NHTSA Recall 12V-305
Reference 2: EA12-005 File Update (Chrysler Jeep Fuel Tank System Safety Defect)
One Page:
Chrysler Jeep Fuel System Defect Investigation EA12-005

Complaints - Search Results | Safercar.gov | NHTSA

Print

Defects - Search Results
1 Record(s) Displayed.

Report Date : July 12, 2012 at 09:33 PM
NHTSA Action Number : EA12005
NHTSA Action Number : EA12005

NHTSA Recall Campaign Number : N/A

Vehicle Make / Model:
Model Year(s):
JEEP / CHEROKEE
1993-2001
JEEP / GRAND CHEROKEE
1993-2004
JEEP / LIBERTY
2002-2007
Manufacturer(s) :
CHRYSLER GROUP LLC
Component(s) :
FUEL SYSTEM, GASOLINE:DELIVERY:HOSES, LINES/PIPING, AND FITTINGS
FUEL SYSTEM, GASOLINE:STORAGE
FUEL SYSTEM, GASOLINE:STORAGE:TANK ASSEMBLY
FUEL SYSTEM, GASOLINE:STORAGE:TANK ASSEMBLY:FILLER PIPE AND CAP
Date Investigation Opened : June 12, 2012
Date Investigation Closed : Open
Summary:
NHTSA has conducted extensive analysis of the data regarding fuel tank integrity for the model year (MY) 1993-2004
Jeep Grand Cherokee (JGC). As a result of that work, the agency has decided to upgrade its safety defect investigation to an
Engineering Analysis and to expand the scope of vehicles included in the investigation. NHTSA's assessment of the data
collected during Preliminary Evaluation (PE) 10-031 indicates that rear-impact-related tank failures and vehicle fires are more
prevalent in the JGC than in the non-Jeep peer vehicles. In addition, the agency's analysis of its FARS data for the peer
vehicles and three Jeep models shows a higher incidence of rear-impact, fatal fire crashes for the Jeep products. PE10-031
had focused on the fuel tank system integrity of the JGC vehicles during rear-end collisions and impacts. The fuel tank is
located at the rear of the vehicle, between the bumper and axle, and is manufactured from a plastic material (HDPE). Three
peer vehicles (across the same MY range as the JGC) were identified for comparative assessment: the Chevrolet Blazer, Ford
Explorer, and Toyota 4Runner. ODI has collected and assessed a significant volume of data for the JGC and three peer
vehicles under the Defect Petition (DP) 09-005 and PE10-031, much of which was either provided by the petitioner or by the
subject and peer manufacturers in response to ODI's information request letters. NHTSA has also utilized its FARS database.
Fatal crash data was collected for the JGC and its three peers, along with data for two other Jeep vehicles, the Cherokee and
Liberty, which were also manufactured with rear mounted fuel tanks and assessed by ODI as Jeep peer vehicles. Based on
the agency's current analysis, ODI has upgraded its investigation to determine whether the subject vehicles contain a defect
that presents an unreasonable risk to safety. The subject vehicles for the investigation will be MY 1993-2004 JGC, MY 19932001 Cherokee, and MY 2002-2007 Liberty. The estimated production volumes for these vehicles are shown above, although
attrition is a factor for the older vehicles. Please note that the counts shown in the above failure report summary are for the
JGC only (values shown in the total column are unique). Data for the other Jeep models and possibly other peer models will
be collected during the investigation. The ODI reports cited above can be reviewed online at www-odi.nhtsa.dot.gov/
complaints under the following identification (ODI) numbers: JGC: 506249, 549376, 734783, 869217, 10009553, 10335943,
10351589, 10351980, 10357528. Liberty: 10357195, 10366653 (duplicate of 10357195), 10138726, 10149256, 10181332
Cherokee: 10409104

http://www-odi.nhtsa.dot.gov/cars/problems/defect/defe...QuickSearch&summary=true&prod_id=8910&PrintVersion=YES (1 of 2)7/12/2012 9:34:18 PM

ATTACHMENT 2
Mr. David L. Strickland
Administrator
NHTSA Headquarters
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
Washington, DC 20590
202-366-4000
1 January 2013

Subject: Chrysler Group, LLC Failure-to-Warn/Comply under 49 CFR § 573.6, et al.
Reference 1: Toyota Motor Corporation/NHTSA Recall 12V-305
Reference 2: EA12-005 File Update (Chrysler Jeep Fuel Tank System Safety Defect)
Ten Pages
Photographs of last-minute release of preposterous, make-shift reinforcement to the rear frame rail, nicknamed
the “Estes bracket” for the 1997 Jeep Grand Cherokee.
Last page of this attachment shows prior now-deleted MOPAR service graphics page for “Estes Bracket”
purposely misleading the public by referring to such as a “tail hook.”

"Estes Bracket"

Photograph by Paul V. Sheridan

"Estes Bracket"

Photograph by Paul V. Sheridan

"Estes Bracket"

Photograph by Paul V. Sheridan

"Estes Bracket"

Photograph by Paul V. Sheridan

"Estes Bracket"

Driver's Side View:
Plastic Fuel Tank, mounted behind rear
axle, mounted below rear structure and
bumper; unlike 2005-current WK-Body, it is
unprotected from direct collision impact.
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"Estes Bracket"

Plastic Fuel Tank
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"Estes Bracket"
Driver's Side View:
Plastic Fuel Tank, mounted behind rear
axle, mounted below rear structure and
bumper; unlike 2005-current WK-Body, it is
unprotected from direct collision impact.
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1997 ZJ-Body Jeep Grand
Cherokee, which had "Estes
bracket" installed at factory to
ensure certification under the
minimums of FMVSS-301.
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During the time that the “Estes Bracket” was available for service, the Mopar
DirectConnect database ostensibly declared that its official purpose was not related
to ZJ-Body recertification under FMVSS-301, but was listed as a “tail hook.”
The “Estes Bracket” hooks nothing.
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Pans, Floor
Figure SZJ-210
ITEM

PART
NUMBER

QTY

LINE

BODY

ENGINE

TRANS

TRIM

DESCRIPTION

55034314

1

Right

55034315

1

Left

24

52059128AA

1

PLATE, Tow Hook

25

06100056

2

26

06101102

2

NUT AND WASHER, Hex,
M12x1.75
BOLT, Hex Head, M12x1.75x45

GRAND CHEROKEE (ZJ)
LINE
SERIES
T = JEEP - 2WD
L = LOWLINE
J = JEEP - 4WD

AR = use ase required

<< RETURN TO GROUP INDEX

SERIES

- = Non illustrrated part

BODY
74 = SPORT UTILITY 4-DR

ENGINE
ELF = 5.2L V8 MPI Engine
EML = 5.9L V8 MPI Engine
ERH = 4.0L Power Tech I-6
Engine

TRANSMISSION
DGK = 4-Spd. Automatic 42RE
Transmission
DGW = 4-Spd. Automatic 4RE
Transmission
DG0 = Transmissions - All Automatic

1997 ZJ

ATTACHMENT 3
Mr. David L. Strickland
Administrator
NHTSA Headquarters
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
Washington, DC 20590
202-366-4000
1 January 2013

Subject: Chrysler Group, LLC Failure-to-Warn/Comply under 49 CFR § 573.6, et al.
Reference 1: Toyota Motor Corporation/NHTSA Recall 12V-305
Reference 2: EA12-005 File Update (Chrysler Jeep Fuel Tank System Safety Defect)

Two Pages:
Document: Failure to Warn NHTSA:
The (Chrysler) Baker “Fuel System Design” Memorandum of 1978

ATTACHMENT 4
Mr. David L. Strickland
Administrator
NHTSA Headquarters
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
Washington, DC 20590
202-366-4000
1 January 2013

Subject: Chrysler Group, LLC Failure-to-Warn/Comply under 49 CFR § 573.6, et al.
Reference 1: Toyota Motor Corporation/NHTSA Recall 12V-305
Reference 2: EA12-005 File Update (Chrysler Jeep Fuel Tank System Safety Defect)

Thirteen Pages:
Five Pages from Chrysler Defense Expert Testimony, previously forwarded
to NHTSA on 24 Sep 2012:

“The tank’s on its own.”
Eight Photographs presented to/used in deposition of Chrysler defense expert, previously forwarded
to NHTSA on 27 July 2012.

ZJ-Body Jeep Grand Cherokee:
Typical Customer View (of Fuel Tank)

Photograph by Karco Engineering

ZJ-Body Jeep Grand Cherokee:
What Showroom Customer Would See if
Fuel Tank was not color-matched to rear
underbody / rear suspension components.

Photograph by Karco Engineering

Approximate Lower Edge
of "bumper," leaving over
seven inches of fuel tank
unprotected from direct or
underride impact.

Open-ended frame rail where bumper
bracket is inserted for mounting.

Unprotected Polyethylene
fuel tank

Photograph by Paul V. Sheridan

Upper edge of "structure" at approximately 21.25 inches,
which leaves over 7 inches of unprotected fuel tank;
unprotected from/during up to 270 degrees of impact angles.

Approximate Lower
edge of bumper

Tire Size: LT235/75R15

Distorted slightly by camera angle, lower portion of polyethylene
fuel tank (for this vehicle) at approximately 14 inches above
ground (when vehicle suspension is not burdened).
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ZJ-Body Rear Fuel Tank Fill
Layout Underside View : fuel tank
removed.

Frame Rail Hole for Fuel Tank Filler / Vent
Hose for pass-through to Fuel Tank.

Left Side (inner surface) of Driver's Side Rear RIM Fascia.
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ZJ-Body Rear
Bumper / RIM
Fascia System

Rear Bumper: Not IIHS Certified
to Minimal 2.5 MPH (?);
Note lightening holes.

Rear RIM Fascia:
Zero protection to
angular impacts.

Bumper Bracket: Non-EAU inserted
into Open Frame Rail for Mounting
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ZJ-Body Rear "Structure" / Bumper
Fuel Tank Protection Performance
Post Real World 40mph Impact.
Rear Bumper with lightening holes. High location of lower edge
does not provide any direct impact protection for lower 7+ inches
of polyethylene fuel tank. RIM Fascia covering exacerbates false
impression of crash protection.

Photograph by Karco Engineering

ZJ-Body Jeep Grand Cherokee Unprotected Fuel Tank System
Real World Performance of Rear "Structure" and Bumper :
Post 40mph impact test.
Photograph by Paul V. Sheridan

ATTACHMENT 5
Mr. David L. Strickland
Administrator
NHTSA Headquarters
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
Washington, DC 20590
202-366-4000
1 January 2013

Subject: Chrysler Group, LLC Failure-to-Warn/Comply under 49 CFR § 573.6, et al.
Reference 1: Toyota Motor Corporation/NHTSA Recall 12V-305
Reference 2: EA12-005 File Update (Chrysler Jeep Fuel Tank System Safety Defect)

Seven Pages:
Original letter from Mr. Thomas Kline, forwarded to NHTSA/DOT on 31 August 2010, includes:
The autopsy report of 9 August 2010 for the Jeep Grand Cherokee fire-death of Mrs. Susan Kline,
The Chrysler-Baker memo of 24 August 1978.

ATTACHMENT 6
Mr. David L. Strickland
Administrator
NHTSA Headquarters
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
Washington, DC 20590
202-366-4000
1 January 2013

Subject: Chrysler Group, LLC Failure-to-Warn/Comply under 49 CFR § 573.6, et al.
Reference 1: Toyota Motor Corporation/NHTSA Recall 12V-305
Reference 2: EA12-005 File Update (Chrysler Jeep Fuel Tank System Safety Defect)

Four Pages:
One page: Eyewitness report of 28 February 2007 that recounts the final moment that led to the
fire-death of Mrs. Susan Kline in a Jeep Grand Cherokee, previously forwarded to NHTSA on
2 September 2012:

“The back of the Jeep immediately burst into flames upon impact. I drove through
the debris and the fireball caused by the Jeep exploding.”
Three pages: Photographs of Mrs. Susan Kline.

Mrs. Susan Kline with her family.

Skull

Lower Edge
of Jaw Bone

Mrs. Susan Kline (death victim):
Post fuel fed fire-death caused by defective fuel system/
tank design in Jeep Grand Cherokee SUVs

Jaw Bone

Upper Torso

Shinbone, Kneecap, Femur

ATTACHMENT 7
Mr. David L. Strickland
Administrator
NHTSA Headquarters
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
Washington, DC 20590
202-366-4000
1 January 2013

Subject: Chrysler Group, LLC Failure-to-Warn/Comply under 49 CFR § 573.6, et al.
Reference 1: Toyota Motor Corporation/NHTSA Recall 12V-305
Reference 2: EA12-005 File Update (Chrysler Jeep Fuel Tank System Safety Defect)

One Page:
NHTSA press release of 18 December 2012 for Toyota Recall 12V-305;
Statement by NHTSA Administrator Mr. David Strickland:

“It is critical to the safety of the driving public that manufacturers report safety defects
in a timely manner. Every moment of delay has the potential to lead to deaths or
injuries on our nation’s highways.”

Toyota Motor Corp. Will Pay Record $17.35 Million in Civil Penalties for Alleged Violations of Federal Law | National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA)

Print

NHTSA 49-12
Tuesday, December 18, 2012
Contact: Karen Aldana, 202-366-9550

Additional Resources

NHTSA/Toyota Signed Agreement

WASHINGTON – The U.S. Department of Transportation's National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) today announced that Toyota Motor Corporation has agreed
to pay $17.35 million, the maximum fine allowable under the law, in response to the agency's assertion that the automaker failed to report a safety defect to the federal
government in a timely manner. This action represents the single highest civil penalty amount ever paid to NHTSA for violations stemming from a recall.
"Safety is our highest priority," said U.S. Transportation Secretary Ray LaHood. "With today’s announcement, I expect Toyota to rigorously reinforce its commitment to
adhering to United States safety regulations."
Federal law requires all auto manufacturers to notify NHTSA within five business days of determining that a safety defect exists or that the vehicle is not in compliance with
federal motor vehicle safety standards and to promptly conduct a recall.
"It's critical to the safety of the driving public that manufacturers report safety defects in a timely manner," said NHTSA Administrator David Strickland. "Every moment of
delay has the potential to lead to deaths or injuries on our nation’s highways."
In early 2012, NHTSA's Office of Defects Investigation began noticing a trend in floor mat pedal entrapment in 2010 Lexus RX 350s in Vehicle Owner Questionnaires (VOQs) and
Early Warning Reporting data. In May, NHTSA contacted Toyota regarding the trend, and a month later Toyota advised NHTSA that it was aware of 63 alleged incidents of
possible floor mat pedal entrapment in Model Year 2010 Lexus RX 350s since 2009. Toyota's own technicians and dealer technicians reported that certain alleged incidents of
unwanted acceleration had been caused by floor mat pedal entrapment.
In June, Toyota advised NHTSA that it would conduct a recall of 154,036 Model Year 2010 Lexus RX 350 and Model Year 2010 RX 450h vehicles to address floor mat pedal
entrapment.
As part of today's settlement, Toyota Motor Corporation and its U.S. based subsidiaries agreed to make internal changes to their quality assurance and review of safetyrelated issues in the United States, and to improve their ability to take into account the possible consequences of potential safety-related defects.
The last time Toyota faced civil penalties was in 2010 when the automaker agreed to pay $48.8 million as a result of three separate investigations into the automaker's
handling of auto recalls. The automaker paid maximum civil penalties for violations stemming from the pedal entrapment, sticky pedal and steering relay rod recalls.
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Reference 1: Toyota Motor Corporation/NHTSA Recall 12V-305
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